A regular meeting of the Planning Board of the Village of Cooperstown was held in the Village Office Building, 22 Main Street, Cooperstown, New York on July 21, 2015 at 4:30 p.m. Members in attendance were Chair – Eugene Berman, Richard Blabey, Paul Kuhn, and Richard Sternberg. Deputy Village Clerk – Jennifer Truax was also present. There were two members of the public present.

Mr. Berman called the meeting to order at 4:32 p.m.

Minutes

Dr. Sternberg made a motion to approve the minutes from the June 16, 2015 meeting as submitted. Mr. Kuhn seconded the motion and a vote had the following results:

AYES: Berman, Blabey, Kuhn, Sternberg

Motion carried.

Dr. Sternberg made a motion to approve the minutes of the special meeting from June 30, 2015 as submitted. Mr. Blabey seconded the motion and a vote had the following results:

AYES: Berman, Blabey, Sternberg

ABSTAIN: Kuhn

Motion carried.

Mr. Blabey stated that the minutes are always very well done and he would like to express his appreciation of the work done to compile quality minutes.

Dr. Sternberg suggested he make a motion that all members could move on to express this appreciation.

Mr. Blabey made a motion that the members of the board express their appreciation to Ms. Truax for the suburb quality minutes recorded at each meeting. Dr. Sternberg seconded the motion and a vote had the following results:

AYES: Berman, Blabey, Kuhn, Sternberg

Motion carried.

Regular Agenda

51 Pioneer Street (Eric Olson) - proposed new projecting sign and Village directional sign

Mr. Olson reviewed his application explaining that he is opening a vintage/classic toy shop. He stated that he would be selling toys from the 1950s through the 1980s. He reviewed the type of toys he currently has for sale. Mr. Olson stated that he would like to install a new projecting sign of the same size and configuration as the previous sign. He continued to state that the previous sign was too deteriorated to have refaced.

Dr. Sternberg stated that the application indicates that the sign will be placed 18' above the sidewalk. He asked if that was correct.

Mr. Olson stated that was correct.

Mr. Berman stated that the sign was 22" by 36" making it approximately 5.5 square feet.

Dr. Sternberg clarified that it would be just slightly less than 6 square feet as it is nearly 2' by 3'. He continued to state that this is the type of sign he would like to see branded with the Village.

Mr. Berman stated that the sign meets the statute.

Dr. Sternberg made a motion to approve the projecting sign at 51 Pioneer Street as submitted. Mr. Kuhn seconded the motion and a vote had the following results:

AYES: Berman, Blabey, Kuhn, Sternberg

Motion carried.

Mr. Olson stated that he would also like a directional sign for the Village directional sign board on the corner of Main and Pioneer Streets. He provided the board with a print out of the proposed sign. He explained that the sign would be black and white with a border the color required by the Village.

Mr. Berman asked if a border alone meets the statute of the law for this type of sign.

Mr. Blabey stated that the law used to require that the background of the sign be the prescribed color but he believes this may have been changed when the sign law was last amended, due in part to the fact that not all signs conformed with the law and the border would allow some uniformity while also allowing for an individual businesses' branding.

The board discussed the required color as taupe and the possibility of the sign holders being changed as part of the Main Street project.

Ms. Truax stated that signage is part of the second phase of the Main Street project which will begin in 2016. She continued to state that the Trustees have agreed that new signage may be placed on the existing directional signs as long as the applicant is aware that these signs may be removed and their sign deemed unusable depending on the new signage plan. She continued to state that any cost incurred is the responsibility of the business owner and no reimbursement of expenses will be made by the Village.

Dr. Sternberg made a motion to approve the directional sign for 51 Pioneer Street as submitted. The applicant is advised that the law regarding this type of sign may change with the development of the Main Street Sign plan and that the Village is not responsible for cost or loss incurred from said changes. Mr. Kuhn seconded the motion and a vote had the following results:

AYES: Berman, Blabey, Kuhn, Sternberg

Motion carried.

8 Doubleday Court (Mott) - proposed Village directional sign on Chestnut Street

Mr. Berman asked that the record show that based on information from Mr. Austin via a text to Ms. Truax, the applicant has withdrawn the application for the directional signage.

1 Atwell Road (MIBH) – trustee referral – special use permit for hospital connecter

Mr. Berman stated that no new information has been provided for this application. He further stated that the BOT will hold a public hearing at their regular meeting on July 27th and if an affirmative decision is made a final site plan review will be necessary.

19 Fair Street (Viek) – proposed freestanding signage for a home occupation and tourist accommodation continued from the June 19, 2015 meeting

Mr. Berman stated that he spoke with Mr. Tillapaugh, Village Attorney and Mr. Austin regarding the sign being of the same design as DEC signage. He explained that they concurred that it is not the Village's responsibility to determine if the proposed sign is an infringement. He continued to state that Mr. Tillapaugh advised that should the board feel that it would like some assurance it could require Mr. Viek to provide correspondence from DEC that they are not concerned with his use of the design.

Otherwise, the board could ask Mr. Viek to change the sign design. He further stated that the sign is larger the law allows.

Mr. Blabey stated that he spent time reviewing the law concerning this type of signage over the last month. He stated that the sign law is written in a way that signs are only allowed if they are specifically permitted and since there is no provision for a combined sign, it would not be allowed.

Mr. Berman stated that this application would not be appropriate for a variance as applicant created the situation.

Mr. Blabey again explained that the law does not allow for the requested signage.

Mr. Berman referred the board to the law allowing multiple signs for offices and studios. He added that there is no corresponding permission concerning home occupations or tourist accommodations.

The board reviewed this section of the law and the type and size of the signs permitted in a residential district. The board further reviewed home occupations and discussed scenarios where multiple home occupations might co-exist in the same residence.

Dr. Sternberg read the definition of a home occupation and asked if a consultant fell into this category as well.

The board discussed Dr. Sternberg's hypothetical consultant, who reviews and writes reports, but does not meet with clients, in the residence. Mr. Blabey stated that in that circumstance, the consultant could preform the work anywhere, for example, in a coffee shop, and the use of the home was not required.

Mr. Berman agreed with Mr. Blabey. He added that since the consulting work that Dr. Sternberg described could be performed anywhere, he believed that it would be merely incidental that the consultant happened to be a home while working and that the residence would not be a professional office.

Mr. Berman stated that the proposed sign is 48" by 27" which would be 9 square feet.

Mr. Blabey stated that the largest sign allowed in a residential district is 6 square feet. Mr. Blabey asked if a motion to deny would be appropriate as the sign is not permitted by law.

Mr. Kuhn stated that in his experience when an item is denied an affirmative motion is made and not carried.

Mr. Berman stated that he feels a motion to deny is appropriate in this situation as the board is setting forth reasons for the denial.

Mr. Blabey made a motion to deny the proposed freestanding sign at 19 Fair Street as the requested sign exceeds the square footage allowed by the Village sign law. Mr. Kuhn seconded the motion and a vote had the following results:

AYES: Berman, Blabey, Kuhn, Sternberg

Motion carried.

Dr. Sternberg asked if the copyright of the DEC sign needs to be addressed.

Mr. Berman stated that if the applicant submits an application where the size of the sign meets the requirements of the law the content of the sign will be reviewed. He further stated that the applicant has had correspondence with DEC.

Zoning Law Language re: Site Plan

Mr. Berman provided the members of the board with a handout regarding the changes to Site Plan review requirements. He pointed out that the language was changed from "All principal uses shall require a site development plan approval" to "All uses shall require a site development plan approval." He stated that although no action is necessary he wanted to be sure the members of the board were aware of the change.

Mr. Berman further stated that there were changes to the sign law earlier in 2015 which are based on changes to the vending law. He stated that he would prepare copies of the law for all of the members of the board.

Continuation of 19 Fair Street (Viek) – proposed freestanding signage for a home occupation and tourist accommodation continued from the June 19, 2015 meeting

Mr. Viek arrived at 5:10 PM.

Mr. Berman informed Mr. Viek that his sign was denied based on the fact that the requested sign was 9 square feet which exceeds the maximum size allowed by the sign law. He explained that 6 square feet would be the maximum allowed by law.

Mr. Viek asked if he could use the same basic saw tooth design but reduced to not exceed the allowed 6 square feet. He stated that he could eliminate the middle board and make the sign slightly narrower to conform to the allowed square footage.

Mr. Berman made a motion to reopen the application of Mr. Viek at 19 Fair Street for further review. Mr. Kuhn seconded the motion and a vote had the following results:

AYES: Berman, Blabey, Kuhn, Sternberg

Motion carried.

The board reviewed Mr. Viek's sign proposal.

Mr. Berman made a motion to approve the freestanding sign for 19 Fair Street provided that the sign not exceed 6 square feet. Dr. Sternberg seconded the motion and a vote had the following results:

AYES: Berman, Blabey, Kuhn, Sternberg

Motion carried.

Other Business:

Mr. Kuhn asked if there were any perspective new members.

Mr. Berman stated that he does believe that there is one perspective member to be appointed at the July Board of Trustee meeting.

Meeting adjourned at 5:21 PM

Respectfully submitted,

Jennifer Truax Deputy Clerk